
Thursday, August 23, 2021  Agenda  

Rochester Township Supervisors Meeting 
Rochester Town Hall 

Monday, August 23, 2021 
6:00 PM 
AGENDA 

 
To participate by telephone, dial (978) 990-5000 and enter access code 253635 

 
I. Call to order the Town Board Meeting (Pledge of Allegiance) 

II. Minutes of the August 12, 2021 Board Meeting 

III. New Business 

A. Pavilion Estates EAW – public comment 

IV. Adjourn 

 
NOTE: 
A quorum of the Rochester Town Board may be present at the following upcoming meetings: 

 None 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

PAGE | 1 
Board Meeting Minutes – August 12, 2021 

Rochester Township ~ Olmsted County ~ Minnesota ~ 4111 11
th
 Ave. SW ~ Rochester, MN  55902 

 

Rochester Township 
Board Meeting Minutes 

August 12, 2021 
 

Meeting was called to order at 7:00 pm by Chairman Matt Kitzmann.  

Members present - Matthew Kitzmann, Jamie Neisen, Brian Zmolek, Brian Mueller, 

Jeff Orth and Randy Staver 

 

Guests – Mark Cochran, Roger Ihrke, Dean Thompson, Mark Welch, Ed Clark, six 

members of the public. 

Minutes – Jamie Neisen moved to approve the minutes for the July 20, 2021 meeting.  

Brian Mueller seconded.  All voted in favor (5-0) and the motion passed. 

Deputy’s Report – Deputy Dean Thompson reviewed the call report of 43 calls for 

service. 

Old Business: 

Pavilion Estate – EAW 

 The public comment period for the EAW has begun and will run until August 26th.  

The Board will likely take up the item sometime in September. 

Engineering consulting support work group 

 Jeff Orth and Brian Zmolek will follow up with Roger Ihrke. 

Lilly Farm Fourth 

 Jamie Neisen wished to speak regarding the topic of the proposed roadway that 

would encroach on Decorah edge as part of this development.  Roger Ihrke has 

spoken with county soil and water staff and noted concerns that might conflict 

with Olmsted county ordinances which could lead to the request being denied by 

the County Board who are the final authority.  Roger does not recommend 

entering into an agreement with the developer.  The Board asked that the 

developer be invited to the next meeting for discussion. 

 
New Business: 

Planning and Zoning Commission Appointment – 

 Jamie Neisen spoke that some additional members of the public have expressed 

interest.  The construct of the commission will be that public members serve as 

the main membership and the two township board members will serve as 

alternates and will still attend meetings.  Matt Kitzmann asked how the 

commission appoints their chairperson.  Roger responded that the position could 



 

PAGE | 2 
Board Meeting Minutes – August 12, 2021 

follow a similar pattern as the township board with a simple rotation.  Chris 

Fogarty, Laura Laudon and Arthur Handleman have expressed interest.  Jamie 

moved to appoint Chris Fogarty to the commission.  Brian Mueller seconded.  All 

voted in favor and the motion passed.  Jamie Neisen moved to appoint Laura 

Laudon to the commission.  Brian Mueller seconded.  All voted in favor and the 

motion passed.  Brian Zmolek moved to appoint Arthur Handleman to the 

commission.  Brian Mueller seconded.  All voted in favor and the motion passed.  

Matt Kitzmann moved to appoint Jamie Neisen and Brian Zmolek as alternates to 

the commission and that they provide oversight.  Brian Mueller seconded.  All 

voted in favor and the motion passed. 

 

Olmsted County Services Agreement – 

 Brian Mueller moved to adopt the county services agreement.  Brian Zmolek 

seconded.  All voted in favor and the motion passed. 

 

Kyle Herring Property – 

 Several board members have visited the site and not much activity has occurred.  

It was noted that no new material has been brought on site.  The topic will be 

revisited in the spring. 

 

American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Form Approval – 

 Randy Staver spoke and stated that two Federal forms must be approved by the 

board as part of the ARPA application process.  Brian Zmolek moved to accept 

the documents.  Jamie Neisen seconded.  All voted in favor and the motion 

passed. 

 

2630 Wildrose Ln SW – 

 Jamie Neisen confirmed that a letter has been sent to the property owner and 

there has been no response.  Roger Ihrke suggested that the next step would be 

to have a conversation with Peter Tiede regarding next steps which could include 

filing appropriate legal documents.  It was noted that the township would bear 

legal expenses since the township would be initiating the action and that those 

expenses would not be covered by MATIT.  Jamie Neisen moved to allow Roger 

to speak with Peter Tiede regarding options.  Brian Zmolek seconded.  All voted 

in favor and the motion passed. 

 

Letter From Boulder Creek Association – 

 A letter from the Boulder Creek Association was received regarding certain 

roadway repairs at the point where the road meets the end of driveways.  

Residents are concerned about the grade change that will be in place until the 

second lift of asphalt is installed next year.  It was noted that someone has made 

temporary repairs.  Matt Kitzmann spoke with Roger Ihrke and is asking that 



 

PAGE | 3 
Board Meeting Minutes – August 12, 2021 

Roger send a letter to the association stipulating concerns and specifying actions 

that will occur next spring.  It was further stated that the township will not be 

paying for any of the changes that have been made. 

 

Information Items – 

 Township Picnic – Randy Staver stated that postcards have been sent to 

township residents.  Brian Zmolek is coordinating food.  Randy Staver was asked 

to see if he can find the quantities purchased last year.  Date for the event is 

Tuesday, August 24th from 4:00 to 7:00 pm. 

 MAT Annual Conference – Randy Staver informed the Board of the annual 

conference to be held September 9th – 11th (Thursday – Saturday).  Registration 

is not required if only attending the Thursday and Friday sessions.  The 

conference will be held virtually. 

 

New Agenda Items: 

 Mayowood Estates Second & Third.  There will be 42 lots total.  The Planning 

and Zoning Commission said two lots don’t meet standards but the commission 

was supportive of appropriate variances.  The commission was supportive of 

moving the request to the township board.  Ed Clark, the developer, would like 

the preliminary plat to stand for 5 years versus the standard 1 year.  He feels it 

will take longer to develop due to ongoing pandemic concerns and acquiring 

building materials.  Roger Ihrke suggested an end date of December 31, 2024.  

Changes in ordinances may occur and the 5 year timeframe offers some 

assurances to the developer.  The timeframe should not be too long however 

since it could become increasingly difficult for the township to enforce ordinance 

changes.  Everyone is aware that the subdivision ordinance will be rewritten in 

the next year and Mr. Clark stated that he is simply trying to protect his upfront 

investment and not have to come back to the board for multiple approvals.  

Jamie Neisen asked if the township accepting a GDP doesn’t that protect the 

developer?  However, ordinance changes could be made that would affect the 

later preliminary or final plats.  Brian Zmolek stated that there should be clear 

reasons for extending the term.  Mr. Clark noted that the city of Rochester 

recently extended theirs from 1 year to 2 years.  Brian moved to set the end date 

for December 31, 2024.  Jeff Orth seconded.  The motion passed 4-1 with Jamie 

Neisen voting nay.  Brian Mueller moved to accept the preliminary plats with 

Planning & Zoning recommendations.  Jeff Orth seconded.  All voted in favor and 

the motion passed. 

 Township Mission Statement.  Jamie Neisen asked whether the township has a 

mission statement.  He was unable to find a statement and proposed some 

language based on what he has seen elsewhere.  The topic will be discussed 

further. 



 

PAGE | 4 
Board Meeting Minutes – August 12, 2021 

 Special Meeting – EAW.  It was suggested that a special meeting will be called 

and a date set at the next (September) meeting.  Brian Zmolek moved to set a 

special meeting.  Jamie Neisen seconded.  All voted in favor and the motion 

passed.  Roger Ihrke spoke and said that presentations could still be allowed 

after the public comment end date of August 26, 2021 but then if that happens 

then the actual decision should be delayed until a future meeting since it will take 

2 to 3 weeks to gather responses.  Roger suggested the Board could hold a 

special meeting before 8/26.  Both sides would need to be made aware and have 

an opportunity to respond.  The Board would mainly listen and perhaps ask some 

clarifying questions.  The Board should not offer opinions since they will need to 

make a decision later.  Brian Mueller commented that he is in favor of a public 

comment period but not extending the 8/26 deadline.  Brian Mueller moved to set 

Monday, August 23rd at 6:00 pm as a special meeting to gather public 

information.  Brian Zmolek seconded.  All voted in favor and the motion passed.  

The meeting will be posted on the township website and on the bulletin board at 

the town hall. 

 

Reports: 

Treasurer’s Report – 

 Treasurer Randy Staver reported.  Brian Mueller moved approval of the 

treasurer’s report.  Jeff Orth seconded.  All voted in favor and the motion passed. 

 Randy reported on the status of the application for ARPA funds.  The application 

was successfully completed and the township received the first half of its 

allocation in the amount of $100,684.90.  The money has been placed in the 

reserve account.  The second half of the allocation should be received next year. 

 Randy distributed a document to the Board that specifies uses of the funds.  

Expenditures will be discussed at a later date. 

Rochester Township Claims – Brian Zmolek moved and Brian Mueller seconded to 

accept and pay Rochester Township claims #4827-4851 in the amount of $46,249.16.  

The motion passed with Jeff Orth abstaining. 

JPB Claims – Brian Mueller moved and Jeff Orth seconded to accept and pay Joint 

Powers Board claims #5537-5533 and the Rochester Township share in the amount of 

$29,262.03, and a payroll share of $12,964.39.  All voted in favor and the motion 

passed. 

Road Maintenance Supervisor Report – 

 Mark Cochran reported.  Work continues on tree removals, 55th Street project, 

pothole repair, mowing and general road work.  Jamie Neisen asked what rate 

we are offering for the open road crew position.  Mark responded $25 / hour.  



 

PAGE | 5 
Board Meeting Minutes – August 12, 2021 

There were some questions about the proposed trailway near Mayo Woodlands.  

Jeff Orth volunteered to visit the site with Mark and report back to the board. 

TCPA Report – 

 Jeff Orth reported that Shepdale Austad has been hired to fill Roger Ihrke’s 

position once he retires.  Shep has begun working alongside Roger. 

Board of Adjustment Report – 

 No meeting this month. 

Planning and Zoning Commission Report –  

 As reported earlier. 

Board Chair Report –  

 No report this month. 

Upcoming Meetings – 

 None – Planning and Zoning Commission – September 14, 2021 

Meeting Adjourned – Brian Mueller moved to adjourn the meeting.  Jamie Neisen 

seconded.  All voted in favor and the motion passed.  Meeting was adjourned at 9:10 

pm. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
__________________________________________________ 
Randy Staver, Clerk / Treasurer 
 
 
__________________________________________________ 
Matt Kitzmann, Chairman 



  
 

Updated December 2015   Page 1 

Quick Reference: Environmental Assessment Worksheet 

Quick Reference: Environmental Assessment Worksheet (EAW) 
The EAW is a brief document designed to lay out the basic facts of a project necessary to determine if an 

Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) is required for the proposed project. The EAW form consists of 20 

questions that provide the information needed to determine if the project will have significant environmental 

impacts. In addition to the legal purpose of the EAW in determining the need for an EIS, the EAW also 

provides permit information, informs the public about the project, and helps identify ways to protect the 

environment. The EAW is not meant to approve or deny a project, but instead act as a source of information 

to guide other approvals and permitting decisions. The EAW is completed by the Responsible Governmental 

Unit (RGU) designated according to Minnesota Rules 4410.  

 

Environmental Review Exemptions 

Some projects of a specific size and nature are exempted from the environmental review process as indicated 

in Minnesota Rules 4410.4600. If a project is identified as exempt, then it is not required to go through 

environmental review in order to move forward. 

 

Mandatory Environmental Review 

Projects that meet or exceed the thresholds described in Minnesota Rules 4410.4300 are required to complete 

an EAW. If a project meets or exceeds the thresholds described in Minnesota Rules 4410.4400, then an EIS is 

required. When determining if a project meets a mandatory environmental review category threshold, it is 

important to keep in mind any connected actions, phased actions, or project expansions within the last three 

years that cumulatively may trigger mandatory environmental review. These provisions are described in 

Minnesota Rules 4410.1000, Subpart 4, and Minnesota Rules 4410.4300, Subpart 1 respectively. 

 

Discretionary Environmental Review 
Projects that are not exempt nor require a mandatory environmental review can still go through the EAW 

process according to Minnesota Rules 4410.1000, Subpart 3. A government unit with approval authority over 

a project can order a discretionary EAW if it determines that the project may have the potential for significant 

environmental effects. A discretionary EAW can be particularly appropriate for projects with some possibility 

of significant adverse environmental impacts or the perception of such. A discretionary EAW can help the 

RGU identify the adverse environmental impacts of a project and their severity. Additionally, discretionary 

environmental review may be ordered by a RGU in response to a citizen petition or if the project proposer 

wishes to initiate environmental review to determine if the project has the potential for significant 

environmental impacts.  

 

Please note that this quick reference guide is not intended to substitute for Minnesota Rules 4410. It is designed to help RGUs 

and others implement the environmental review process more effectively and efficiently. The guide does not alter the rules or 

change their meaning; if any inconsistencies arise between this guide and the rules, the rules take precedent. Please contact 

EQB Staff with any questions at Env.Review@state.mn.us or 651-757-2873. 

  

https://www.eqb.state.mn.us/sites/default/files/documents/Finalized%20EAW%20Form%20July2013.pdf
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/rules/?id=4410
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/rules/?id=4410.4600
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/rules/?id=4410.4300
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/rules/?id=4410.4400
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/rules/?id=4410.1000
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/rules/?id=4410.4300
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/rules/?id=4410.1000
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/rules/?id=4410
mailto:Env.Review@state.mn.us


  
 

Updated December 2015   Page 2 

Quick Reference: Environmental Assessment Worksheet 

EAW Process Steps 
(Minnesota Rules 4410.1000 – 1700)     
The EAW should be prepared as early as practicable in the project development process. The RGU as 

designated in Minnesota Rules 4410 is responsible for preparing the EAW based on data submitted by the 

project proposer. The EAW process includes a comment period and the option for an RGU to host a public 

meeting to gather additional comments. Once the EAW process is completed, the RGU must make a decision 

on the need for an EIS. Minnesota Rules 4410.1700, Subpart 1 specifies that a positive EIS decision shall be 

made for projects that “have the potential for significant environmental effects”. If a project does not have the 

potential for significant environmental effects, then the RGU shall issue a negative EIS decision, and the 

project can move forward.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Incomplete 

Submittal 

RGU orders a 

discretionary EAW 

or a mandatory 

EAW is required  

(4410.1000) 

 

Project proposer 

submits completed 

data portions of 

EAW to the RGU  

(4410.1400) 

RGU reviews project 

proposer’s data 

submittal and makes 

determination of 

completeness within 

30 days  

(4410.1400) 

RGU deems data 

submittal incomplete 

and returns submittal 

to project proposer 

for completion of 

missing data  

(4410.1400) 

RGU deems 

data submittal 

complete and 

notifies project 

proposer 

within 5 days  

(4410.1400) 

  

RGU adds 

supplemental 

information to 

EAW, if necessary, 

and approves EAW 

for distribution 

within 30 days  

(4410.1400) 

RGU distributes the 

draft EAW for 

comments and 

publishes notice in the 

EQB Monitor. RGU 

publishes notice in 

local newspaper within 

5 days of distribution  

(4410.1500) 

Reviewers have 30 

days to submit 

written comments 

to the RGU. The 

RGU may host a 

public meeting to 

gather comments  

(4410.1600) 

RGU makes EIS need 

decision and prepares 

record of decision, 

including findings of 

fact and responses to all 

substantive comments 

(4410.1700 Subp. 3 & 4) 

RGU must make EIS 

need decision within 15 

days of end of comment 

period, or up to 30 days 

if decision is to be made 

by a board or council 

 (4410.1700 Subp. 2) 

RGU postpones EIS 

need decision for up to 

30 days to obtain 

missing information. 

RGU provides written 

notice to affected parties 

(4410.1700 Subp. 2a B) 

RGU makes positive EIS 

declaration and includes 

studies to gather missing 

info in scope of EIS  

(4410.1700 Subp. 2a A) 

RGU distributes 

notice of decision 

within 5 days of 

decision. Notice is 

published in EQB 

Monitor  

(4410.1700 Subp. 5) 

In
su

ff
ic

ie
n
t 

In
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 

Resubmittal 

O
b

ta
in

 M
is

si
n
g
 I

n
fo

rm
at

io
n
 

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/rules/?id=4410
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/rules/?id=4410.1700


July 2013 version 

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT WORKSHEET

This Environmental Assessment Worksheet (EAW) form and EAW Guidelines are available at the 

Environmental Quality Board’s website at: The EQB webpage of Environmental Review Guidance 

Documents / http://www.eqb.state.mn.us/EnvRevGuidanceDocuments.htm. The EAW form provides 

information about a project that may have the potential for significant environmental effects. The EAW 

Guidelines provide additional detail and resources for completing the EAW form. 

Cumulative potential effects can either be addressed under each applicable EAW Item or can be 

addressed collectively under EAW Item 19. 

Note to reviewers: Comments must be submitted to the RGU during the 30-day comment period 

following notice of the EAW in the EQB Monitor. Comments should address the accuracy and 

completeness of information, potential impacts that warrant further investigation, and the need for an 

EIS. 

1. Project title:

Pavilion Estates Subdivision 

2. Proposers

Contact person: Steve 

Connelly and 

International Properties 

LLC, Dr. A. Mordi, 

President 
Title: 

Landowner/Developer 

Address: P.O. Box 681

City, State, ZIP: Byron, MN 

55920

Phone: 507-261-4386
Fax: NA 

Email: sconnelly56@aol.com

3. RGU

Contact persons: 

Randy Staver/ Rochester Township 

Clerk and / Roger Ihrke/TCPA – 

Rochester Township Zoning 

Administrator 

Address: 4111 11th Ave SW  

room 10

City, State, ZIP: Rochester, MN 

55902  

Phone: 507-529-0774

Fax: 507-281-6821

Email: roger@tcpamn.org

Pavilion Estates, Rochester Township


	August 23, 2021 Agenda.pdf (p.1)
	08-12-2021 Minutes.pdf (p.2-6)
	Quick Reference-Environmental Assessment Worksheet - Updated Dec2015_0 (1).pdf (p.7-8)

